
 

 
 

PUBLIC MEETING SUMMARY INCLUDING 
COMMENTS, QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

August 2015 
 
1. ​ ​INTRODUCTION 
 
As part of continued efforts and commitment to transparency and public outreach, and 
to comply with the Transparency Policy for Public-Private Partnerships, the Colorado 
Department of Transportation’s High Performance Transportation Enterprise (HPTE), 
held four public meetings in August 2015. The purpose of the meetings was to provide 
information and take public comment and input on a proposed Public-Private 
Partnership before issuance of a draft Request for Proposal (RFP). 
 
2.  OVERVIEW OF MEETINGS  
 
The I-70 East Project team and the High Performance Transportation Enterprise (HPTE) 
conducted public meetings Aug. 17-20, 2015, to provide important updates on the plans 
to reconstruct I-70 between Brighton Boulevard and I-225, as well as the next steps in 
the process to select a private partner to design, build, finance, operate and maintain 
the highway in northeast Denver.  
 
The series of meetings included a telephone town hall (8/18) focusing on how a 
public-private partnership (P3) is being explored for this project and the developer 
selection process. Also, public meetings were held in Commerce City (8/17), Aurora 
(8/19) and Denver (8/20) to discuss the proposed improvements to the interstate, 
mitigation strategies and a possible P3 to bring these improvements to Colorado. At the 
meetings, the public had the opportunity to provide input on this P3 process. 

 
The telephone town hall focused primarily on the procurement and P3 process, and 
featured brief comments from Project Director Tony DeVito, HPTE Executive Director 
Mike Cheroutes, HPTE Board member and CDOT Transportation Commissioner Shannon 
Gifford, and North Denver Cornerstone Collaborative Executive Director Kelly Leid. The 
telephone town hall hosted 3,302 inbound callers, and 19 questions were answered 
live. An additional six voicemails were received with questions or comments following 
the live call. HPTE and project staff returned these calls with no further follow up 
necessary.  
 
The in-person public meetings included an open house, a PowerPoint presentation 
followed by a facilitated question and answer session, and returned to the open house 
format for the final 30 minutes. The PowerPoint presentation focused on what has 

 



 

changed since the Supplemental Draft Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) was 
released (specifically, aesthetics and mitigations), what Phase 1 of the project 
includes, the ​de minimis ​finding​, ​what is a Request for Proposal (RFP), and the next 
steps in the process, including the selection of the Developer. The PowerPoint was 
very high-level, and most of the details were included on the exhibits in the open 
house. There were three ways the public could ask questions and provide comment at 
the meetings: one, make a verbal comment before the assembled audience (all verbal 
comments and questions were tracked on the script pad); two, ask questions to the 
project team members during the open house; and three, complete comment sheets 
that were provided to attendees to solicit written comments about the project.  
 
Childcare and translators were available to all attendees. 

 
2. PROJECT INFORMATION  
The following subsections briefly describe the project. 

 
a. Background 
The Colorado Department of Transportation (CDOT) and the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) propose improvements to I-70 between I-25 and I-225. The 
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA) requires projects that are federally 
funded and may have an impact on the environment to be analyzed through a rigorous 
process that allows the public to comment on the project. Additionally, the HPTE 
follows a transparency policy that includes pre-Request for Proposal outreach to gather 
input on the procurement process and inform the public about the delivery method 
chosen.  

 
b. Project Purpose and Need 
The purpose of the I-70 East project is to implement a transportation solution that 
improves safety, access and mobility, and addresses congestion on I-70. The need for 
the project results from several issues: 

● Increased transportation demand 
● Limited transportation capacity 
● Safety concerns 
● Transportation infrastructure deficiencies 

 
c. Identified Preferred Alternative 
CDOT is identifying the Partial Cover Lowered Alternative with Managed Lanes Option 
as the Preferred Alternative. This alternative would remove the deteriorating, 
50-year-old viaduct between Brighton Boulevard and Colorado Boulevard, rebuild I-70 
below grade on the existing alignment, and place a nearly 4-acre landscaped cover over 
the highway between Columbine Street and Clayton Street next to Swansea Elementary 
School. It also would add one managed lane in each direction of the highway from I-25 
to Chambers Road to improve mobility. The cover over the highway reconnects the 
neighborhoods with an urban landscaped area that could include playgrounds, plazas, 
outdoor classrooms and community gardens, all of which have received major public 

 



 

support during community meetings. Feedback provided during the Supplemental Draft 
EIS public comment period will be considered before formally selecting the Preferred 
Alternative in the Final EIS. 

 
d. Transportation Benefits 
Improvements to I-70 have the potential to affect the surrounding transportation 
system, including other roadways, transit services, rail and motor freight, and 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities. All Build Alternatives will: 

● Provide increased capacity and reduce congestion 
● Improve safety by widening shoulders and improving interchanges 
● Replace aging infrastructure 
● Reduce peak-period travel time for I-70 travelers 

 
e. Resources Presented 
The following resources and topics were presented at the public meeting: 

● Project Overview  
● I-70 Environmental Process  
● Public Involvement  
● PCL Alternative  
● Build Alternatives Maps 
● Project Alternatives Overview 
● Environmental Justice and Mitigation Measures  
● Air Quality  
● Noise Walls 
● North-South Connectivity  
● De minimis finding (South Platte) 
● Project Phasing  
● Aesthetics  
● What is a P3? 
● HPTE Overview 
● P3 Structure  
● Upcoming Schedule  

 
f. Next Steps 
A formal review period and public hearings will provide the community, stakeholders 
and agencies an opportunity to comment on the Final EIS (scheduled for release 
January 2016). After considering additional public input following the Final EIS, a 
Record of Decision will be issued by FHWA that specifies the project that will be built. 
 
Concurrently, HPTE will be working to select a Developer for the project. The four 
shortlisted teams will receive a Draft Request for Proposals (RFP) in September – at 
the same time it is released to the public. The RFP will go through several drafts, and 
a final one will be released in the summer of 2016. Prior to the final release, HPTE 
will host another round of public meetings.  

 



 

 
Construction is anticipated to begin in 2017.  

 
3. SUMMARY OF MEETING STATIONS 
The open house session was divided into seven different stations manned by staff 
members and project technical experts to answer questions for attendees. The 
following stations were included: 

1. Welcome—Overview: ​This station started with the sign-in table, where 
attendees signed in and received the evening’s agenda and welcome packet. 
Then they were directed through a series of boards that presented a project 
overview, information about the I-70 East environmental process, the 
mitigations that changed after the Supplemental Draft EIS (SDEIS), aesthetics, 
HPTE and next steps.  

2. Project Alternatives: ​This station presented a description of the Preferred 
Alternative and the Build Alternatives east of the cover. A bird’s eye view of 
each alternative gave attendees a visual impression of what the alternatives 
would look like through the project area. 

3. Mitigations: ​This station presented the issues and mitigations that changed 
since the SDEIS including air quality, connectivity, environmental justice and 
locations of the noise walls. Additionally, the mitigations station included 
information on the ​de minimis ​finding that required public input.  

4. Phase 1: ​A map of the Phase 1 project was displayed to show exactly what was 
happening at each section of the corridor, and also provided information on 
why phasing is needed for the I-70 East Project.  

5. Aesthetics: ​This station presented visuals of the aesthetics for both east-west 
and north-south directions and also explained why aesthetic guidelines are 
necessary.  

6. Right-of-Way (ROW): ​Representatives from CDOT’s ROW department were on 
site to answer specific questions about the ROW impacts and policies.  

7. What’s Next/Comment Station:​ This station outlined the HPTE procurement 
process and explained what the P3 structure. A schedule was provided that 
showed both the EIS and procurement next steps that lead to the construction 
beginning in 2017. A comment station was the last thing that attendees saw 
before exiting, complete with a board that documented how people could stay 
involved in the project.  

 
4. SUMMARY OF PUBLIC INPUT 
Attendees could provide comments by filling out a written comment sheet or by 
providing verbal comments during the Q/A session. This document provides the 
comments received at each meeting through both methods. 
 
On the comment sheets CDOT and HPTE asked for responses to seven questions: 
1. Do you have any comments or suggestions concerning the Identified Preferred 

Alternative, the Partial Cover Lowered Alternative with Managed Lanes Option, 

 



 

that you would like the project team to consider?  
2. Do you have any questions or comments on Phase 1?  
3. Do you have suggestions that should be considered as we continue to develop the 

Aesthetic Guidelines for the project?  
4. Do you have any comments on how the project will affect the South Platte River 

Trail (Section 4(f) ​de minimis ​finding)?  
5. CDOT and HPTE are pursuing a public-private partnership with a developer on the 

I-70 East Project. The Developer will design, build, finance, maintain and operate 
the highway for approximately 30 years in return for a series of payments. What 
criteria should be considered during the RFP process in selecting a developer for 
the I-70 East Project?  

6. CDOT will always remain the owner of the highway. In the public-private 
partnership, HPTE will continue oversight of the developer during all phases from 
design to construction to maintenance. What topics are important to you and how 
should the developer be required to handle these areas: communication, 
maintenance, environmental, workforce utilization? 

7. Any additional comments or questions? 
 
 

AUG. 17, COMMERCE CITY PUBLIC MEETING  
 

Date/Time: ​Monday, Aug. 17, 2015, 4-6 p.m. 
Location: ​Commerce City Civic Center, 7887 E. 60th Ave., Commerce City, CO 80022 
Attendees: ​14 
 
Of the 14 attendees at the Aug. 17 Commerce City Public Meeting, two people provided 
written comments, and no verbal comments were made.  

 
SUMMARY OF PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 
a.  Written Comments    

There were two written comment sheets provided on the night of the Commerce City 
meeting: 

 
# Comment/Question 
1 1. I agree that the partial cover sounds best. But, as most impact will be 

on the north side of I-70, this must be minimized. The neighborhood there 
has already been beat up through I-70 projects since the viaduct was built. 
Community must be priority one!  
 
2. Phase 1 looks good and the way Tony DeVito explained it was great! He 
used the language “re-connecting the community” through the preferred 
offering. He was the first person that I heard use this language. This is the 

 



 

more important as my family has a 100 yr. history in the community of 
Elyria/Swansea and Globeville.  
 
3. Focus on community! The Aesthetics must agree with the core 
community relative to folks passing through. Some depiction of the rich 
history should be apparent!  
 
4. Not only the trail must be considered, but also important on the river 
itself. Access to the path in some essence must be considered. Community 
first, project second! Disruption must be minimal.  
 
5. A track record of community mindedness and value. There must be an 
appropriate balance of functionality, aesthetic and proper maintenance, 
as well as caring for the people in the immediate community. Nothing 
makes people feel worse in these types of projects than being ill 
considered.  
 
6. Open communication is paramount – transparency is vital – community 
outreach must be wide, local and effective. Communication with HPTE by 
the developer must be open and honest as well. The developer must be 
environmentally responsible – with a proven record. The developer must 
meet all maintenance needs in a timely manner and be efficient in 
workforce development. Local economy ​must ​be considered.  
 
7. I enjoyed the open house format very much! Most of the staff was 
pleasant but, I had to initiate most conversation. Tony DeVito was one of 
the few who openly approached. A number of staff were initially standing 
around with less than pleasant looks on their faces. At the door, there was 
staff but I was ​not​ greeted by any of them. I got the feeling that some 
were assessing my personal value. This is not what I mean about 
considering community and paramount and not secondary.  

2 1. I am opposed to foreign ownership of any infrastructure.  
2. Why is there no Interstate Bus service to Globeville?  
3. Make it as green as possible 
4. No  
5. Raise the state gas tax instead of foreign ownership.  
6. Environmental projects.  
7. Good luck 

 
 

AUG. 19, AURORA PUBLIC MEETING  
 

 



 

Date/Time: ​Wednesday, Aug. 19, 5:30-7:30 p.m. 
Location: ​Aurora Strong Resilience Center, 1298 Peoria St., Aurora, CO 80011 
Attendees: ​31 

 
Of the 31 attendees at the Aug. 19 Aurora Public Meeting, four people provided written 
comments, and 14 verbal comments were made.  
 
SUMMARY OF PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

a. Written Comments 
There were four written comment sheets provided on the night of the Aurora 
meeting: 
  

Comment/Question 

 Maybe the use of solar or geothermal to heat the streets during snow season. 

1. I don’t think this is the best design but I know we are way past this. I 
preferred leaving it elevated. 
2. I don’t think the price object will be achieved. I think you are 
underestimating the project. 
3. I have big doubts in your traffic flow and moving traffic in the area. 

2. Any asbestos abatement required? 
3. Consult with local business and residents 
5. Hopefully a local Colorado Developer 
7. I would like to see local residents offered job opportunities!  

1. Partial Cover is absolutely the best alternative. Also, managed lanes are 
preferred. 
2. I like the aesthetic design concern addressed to E/W and N/S flow. Please 
keep in mind that E/W traffic can only enjoy the partial cover as open space 
landscaping/sculpture is provided. 
3. On the bridges (existing and reconstructed) please try to make them more 
interesting – lighting standards, surface design, railings, perhaps lighting 
design across the bridge face. 
4. No 
5. First, the Developer should not design the highway CDOT should (unless you 
mean engineering design). Concerns include – quality control, dispute 
mediation, interface and communication between CDOT/permitting and 
developer accountability, team adhesion and stability, continued public 
communication. 
6. Communication  - 1. Local, 2. Through Traffic, 3. Neighborhood Impact --- 

 



 

all req. different forms of communication but lots of advance notice is the 
constant. 
Maintenance – CDOT needs to schedule regular checks and developer period to 
repair clearly established in consequences. And I assume there will be overrun 
penalties re: schedule. 
7. Info on the boards should be on handouts so we can ponder it at home and 
write notes during meeting. Also, not everyone (believe it or not) can access 
the web. Also, key staff contact cards should be on table for additional 
questions later. 

 
b. Verbal Comments 

There were 14 public verbal comments provided on the night of the Aurora Public 
Meeting. 

 

Comment/Question Answer 

What are the changes 
in the RFP from Draft 
to Final? 

All versions of the RFP, including all drafts and 
the final, will be made public on the HPTE 
website.  

How do you manage 
discrepancy between 
bidding and final 
design? 

CDOT will oversee all aspects of the project for 
quality and to meet the terms of the contract. In 
the event of non-compliance, CDOT can withhold 
payment to the private partner.  

How do you bid when 
engineering comes 
later? 

The CDOT team worked to get the project to a 
certain level of design before beginning the 
procurement process. Additionally, the proposing 
Developer teams will also be doing their own 
engineering and design at-risk before submitting 
their proposals to ensure that their designs and 
estimates are accurate. 

What if they find 
things above and 
beyond their bid 
during construction? 
Who pays if costs go 
up? 

A key advantage of a P3 is the ability to transfer 
project risks and cost overruns to the private 
sector. The final RFP, which is essentially a 
contract with the Developer, will provide a final 
determination on risk sharing and will lock in 
CDOT costs. Any cost overruns occurring outside 
of the terms of the contract will be borne by the 
Developer. 

 



 

Is this design-build 
with cost plus max? 

This is a Design-Build-Finance- Operate- Maintain 
project. CDOT is seeking best value proposals for 
a set scope.  

Will the 
reauthorization of 
federal highways bill 
impact this? 

The Federal funding for this project has already 
been allocated and the passage of this bill would 
not be expected to impact project funding.  

Is toll bonding a public 
offering? 

CDOT will collect the toll revenues from the 
express lanes and will use the funds to help in 
the annual payments to the private partner. 
There will be no bond issued for this project by 
HPTE. 

I live near Steele and 
find I-70 unusable 
because of back-ups. 
What relief is planned 
for the mousetrap? 

The I-70 East project will restripe or reconstruct 
the existing lanes and add new express lanes to 
improve mobility along this highly congested 
corridor. However, the project does not include 
any changes to the mousetrap. The mousetrap is 
a relatively new structure; reconstructed around 
twenty years ago. 

Can you re-open this 
project if you find it 
doesn't work in 35 
years? 

CDOT will continually monitor and evaluate the 
project during the contractual period with the 
private partner as well as after the term when 
CDOT resumes maintenance and operations of 
the fully rehabbed highway.  In addition, this is a 
multi-phase project with additional work to 
follow should funding be identified. 

Can you describe the 
similarities/differences 
with VA Hospital 
project and this one? 

There are many differences between the VA 
Hospital project and I-70 East. As a design-build 
project, I-70 East will involve a single united 
team in the design and construction of the 
project. In addition, the public-private 
partnership model provides important 
protections against cost overruns.  

What are your 
parameters for tolls? 

HPTE will review and approve the toll schedule 
rate, which will be collected by CDOT/HPTE on 

 



 

this corridor. The tolls will be set to manage 
congestion, so that the tolls won't be too high 
that no one uses it or too low and too many 
people use the lane. The purpose of the express 
lanes is to offer choice and a reliable travel 
time, which is managed by setting a toll price to 
allow that.  

CDOT realizes that we can't build our way out of 
congestion, so tolled express lanes offer drivers 
choices and can help to manage traffic with 
additional congestion that may come to this 
corridor. 

Why do you call 
environmental justice 
mitigation 
environmental justice? 
Seem to be social 
issues. Are you willing 
to re-term? 

Environmental Justice is a term that comes from 
Executive Order 12898. Federal Actions to 
Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, 1994. 
It is a Federal term that is used in all NEPA 
processes. 

Re: Swansea 
Elementary: massive 
vacuum system? Is 
installation of HVAC in 
school a socially just 
measure? 

An HVAC system – or heating, ventilating and air 
conditioning – will help to improve the air quality 
within the school during and after construction. 
This was an improvement that was decided on by 
Denver Public Schools, Swansea Elementary 
School leadership and CDOT. 

Have you asked the 
community if they 
want school rebuilt? 

Yes, we considered moving the school and 
researched possible relocation sites. However, 
after an extensive public input process the 
community, Denver Public Schools and Swansea 
Elementary School leadership requested that 
CDOT make improvements to the existing school. 

  

AUG. 20, DENVER PUBLIC MEETING  
 

Date/Time: ​Thursday, Aug. 20, 5:30-7:30 p.m. 
Location: ​Swansea Recreation Center, 2650 E. 49th Ave., Denver, CO 80216 
Attendees: ​95 
Of the 95 attendees at the Aug. 20 Denver Public Meeting, four people provided written 
 



 

comments, and 11 verbal comments were made.  
 

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

a. Written Comments 
There were four written comment sheets provided on the night of the Denver 
meeting: 

Comment/Question 

Completed only contact information 

1. To set team for evictions renters 
2. Voters # removed, new lines have 
7. Higher vent pipes 

1. Is it necessary? Given VMT, and a new rail line , why are we 
encouraging more use of SOVs? 
3. Concrete is sterile. Acre-feet of concrete is oppressive 
5. If this is a money-making enterprise, why doesn’t CDOT do it itself 
and reap the rewards?  
7. The whole project is questionable. Ever given population growth 
choosing to subside expensive and polluting driving instead of transit or 
changing land use is not smart.  

1. I am concerned about the drainage issue. Also, that this alternative 
must last 100 years… the viaduct did not make it! Also, how do we grow 
with a method that cannot be expanded. 40’ underground makes 
expansion tough. 
2. Phase 1 is $1.2 billion… how’s the financing going to work… $50 million 
DRCOG, 2 year of $s approved from general fund… this project is going on 
for a long time. Bridge fund? What about rest of state’s bridges? 
4. I bike this corridor frequently. Please make detour safe and friendly to 
riders and walkers. How will you keep dust/trash down? 
5. Some type of evidence the developer will be AROUND in next 30 years! 
What’s the fall back if the developer fails? Performance bonds?  
6. How does this actually work? Does the developer have a lease? What 
type of consideration does CDOT give?  
7. We have 100-year storms every couple of years now. Has climate change 
weather changes been considered? 

  
 
b. Verbal Comments 
There were 11 public verbal comments provided on the night of the Denver Public 
Meeting. 
 



 

  

Comment/Question Answer 

How will the Request 
for Proposal process 
ensure transparency? 

The RFP process will ensure transparency 
because all drafts of the RFP will be posted 
online and made available to the public at the 
same time it is released to the shortlisted 
Developer teams. The HPTE transparency plan 
also ensures that there are public meetings at 
certain points during the P3 process to gather 
input and provide information and explanation of 
the process. The next public meeting for the I-70 
East procurement process will be held prior to 
the release of the final RFP in late 2016. 

Why not a more 
thorough study of the 
reroute? 

If there is one advantage to a nearly 13-year 
study it is that we’ve had the opportunity to look 
at every option. CDOT has evaluated the reroute 
on multiple occasions and found it to not be a 
reasonable alternative based on this corridor’s 
purpose and need. Here are a few of the reasons 
this concept was not carried forward: 
· Rerouting I-70 would cause substantial increase 
in traffic volumes on 46th Ave. 2035 volumes on 
46th Avenue are 10 to 20 times higher (more than 
50,000 vehicles per day) compared to existing 
alignment alt. 
·  Rerouting I-70 will force delivery trucks and 
other large vehicles to use 46th Avenue 
frequently to reach the industrial areas and 
businesses located near the existing I-70. 
· Of the traffic heading west on I-70, 
approximately 50 percent continues past I-25, 
staying on I-70. The Reroute Alternative adds two 
miles of out-of-direction travel for these 
vehicles. Thirty-five percent of the traffic 
heading west on I-70 exits to southbound I-25. 
This alternative adds four miles of 
out-of-direction travel for these vehicles 
resulting in additional travel times. 
· There will no longer be multiple east-west 
highway route choices in the area. The multiple 
route choices are beneficial for emergency 

 



 

access. 

With VMT and the rail 
line, how can CDOT 
justify expansion?  

All I-70 project alternatives assume 
implementation of the transportation 
improvements identified in the DRCOG 2035 
Metro Vision Regional Transportation Plan 
(MVRTP). This includes both programmed 
projects (those budgeted in the five-year 
Transportation Improvement Plan [TIP]) and 
planned projects (those not in the TIP, but 
included in the adopted DRCOG 2035 MVRTP).  
In addition to planned roadway improvements, 
the analysis assumed the implementation of 
major transit system improvements within the 
Denver region as part of RTD’s FasTracks 
program. Of most significance in the study area is 
the East Corridor commuter rail project, which 
will run from downtown Denver to DIA. The 
future traffic modeling accounted for these 
projects and their impact on travel demand. 

 
The higher transit ridership due to expansion in 
transit was considered in the analysis of the Final 
EIS. Even with expanded transit use, the analysis 
shows an increase in daily traffic in the future, 
which requires additional lanes on the highway to 
accommodate the added traffic. 
 
In addition, while the recession of 2007-08 did 
result in a reduction in VMT growth at the 
national level, recent FHWA data has shown that 
VMT has been increasing again during the last 18 
months and has reached pre-recession levels. For 
more information, see the FHWA website: 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/policyinformation/tr
avel_monitoring/15juntvt/15juntvt.pdf 

Why did the scope of 
the study not include 
I-76, I-270, west of 
Wadsworth? 

The project limits extend along I-70 between I-25 
and Tower Road. The project area covers 
locations within Denver, Commerce City, and 
Aurora. The study area includes the 
neighborhoods of Globeville, Elyria and Swansea, 
Northeast Park Hill, Stapleton, Montbello, 

 

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/policyinformation/travel_monitoring/15juntvt/15juntvt.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/policyinformation/travel_monitoring/15juntvt/15juntvt.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/policyinformation/travel_monitoring/15juntvt/15juntvt.pdf


 

Gateway, and a segment of Aurora. 
 

Existing and forecasted traffic volumes were the 
main factor in determining the project limits on 
I-70. Forecasted traffic volumes for the year 2035 
range from 95,000 to 270,000 vehicles per day 
between I-25 and Peña Boulevard, declining east 
of there. The western limit is I-25 because of the 
high diversion of traffic from I-70 to both 
northbound and southbound I-25. Between 40 
percent and 50 percent of traffic traveling 
westbound on I-70 diverts onto I-25. Tower Road 
is the eastern limit because the traffic volumes 
drop substantially east of Peña Boulevard. These 
limits do not preclude other NEPA transportation 
improvement studies outside the corridor. 

What is the impact to 
the taxpayers? 

The Phase 1 Project is estimated to cost 
approximately $1.17B. The project will be 
funded from the following funding sources: 
·  Colorado Bridge Enterprise Revenues ($850 
million) 
·   Denver Regional Council of Governments 
(DRCOG)/ Surface Transportation 
Program-Metropolitan Areas 
(STP-Metro)/Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality 
(CMAQ) funds ($50 million) 
·  Senate Bill 09-228 funds ($180 million) 
 
Taxes would not be raised to pay for this project. 

Community health 
impacts on residents 
and the school, during 
and after 
construction? 
Disparities? 

An important purpose of the EIS process is to 
identify and analyze all social and environmental 
impacts of the proposed project. This includes 
impacts to natural resources, the number and 
location of any areas of hazardous materials, and 
any impacts to community resources. Air quality 
has been a particular focus of this analysis. CDOT 
has met—and in fact exceeded--all state and 
federal air quality analysis requirements. Our 
analysis was developed in coordination with EPA 
and CDPHE.  

  

 



 

The Final EIS is the third time CDOT has 
conducted a comprehensive analysis of air quality 
for the I-70 East Project. 

  
Our analysis shows that the I-70 East Project will 
meet EPA’s air quality standards through 2035, 
based on a thorough analysis of five criteria 
pollutants and seven mobile source air toxics and 
GHG emissions. 

  
In addition, the Preferred Alternative is 
anticipated to generally improve air quality in 
the area compared to the No-Action Alternative 
by improving mobility and reducing congestion. 

  
CDOT also has committed to extensive 
mitigations to address construction air quality 
and noise impacts at Swansea Elementary School, 
a sensitive receptor and an important community 
resource - including installing new windows and 
doors, as well as a new HVAC system. In addition, 
CDOT is proposing to provide certain residents 
with air conditioning units and new storm 
windows to address construction noise and dust 
impacts. 
 

What is the plan for 
replacement of 
housing and property 
acquisition? 

CDOT is required by law to provide all displaced 
residents with full benefits per the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (otherwise known 
as the Uniform Act). This includes providing 
compensation for the value of a home, in 
addition to a benefit for the difference between 
the value of the home and the replacement 
property. The same benefit is provided to renters 
as well. As a side note, eminent domain is very 
rarely used in the acquisition process. 
As part of the I-70 East Project, CDOT has 
proposed making a funding contribution for new 
affordable housing development in the Swansea 
and Elyria neighborhoods. This is considered a 
project mitigation and is completely separate 

 



 

and above our requirements under the Uniform 
Act. As you noted, this mitigation proposal is a 
first for CDOT. 
 

Live close to the 
project. How will 
noise and dust be 
mitigated?  

CDOT has proposed providing homes close to the 
project some protection from the noise and dust 
during the construction period. This includes 
providing window air conditioning units (along 
with a utility credit) and new storm windows for 
these homes. Additionally, the Developer will be 
required to implement best management 
practices to reduce dust, give advance 
notification for any noisy work and meet all City 
of Denver noise ordinances. 

Was the recent health 
impact study 
considered and 
incorporated in the 
EIS? 

The current health status of the affected 
communities has been thoroughly discussed in 
the Denver Department of Environmental Health's 
Health Impact Assessment (September 2014). 
Potential impacts from the I-70 redevelopment 
project, including effects of each alternative on 
the ability to meet the health-based National 
Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS), and on 
levels of Mobile Source Air Toxics (MSATs), are 
discussed in detail in the Final EIS. NEPA 
obligates CDOT to consider impacts on health; 
however, it does not specifically require a Health 
Impact Assessment. The Final EIS includes a 
section on health. See Section 5.20, Human 
Health Conditions. 

Local business – how 
are they assisted? What 
about renters? And the 
community? 

CDOT notifies all impacted owners and renters of 
the intent to acquire an interest in their 
property, including providing a written offer of 
fair compensation specifically describing those 
property interests. A right-of-way specialist is 
assigned to each property owner to help them 
understand and navigate this process. 

 
Residents will not be required to move unless at 
least one comparable Decent, Safe, and Sanitary 
(DSS) replacement unit is available. DSS 
standards are established by federal regulations 

 



 

and conform to applicable local housing and 
occupancy codes. CDOT will provide comparable 
replacement housing that is DSS and within the 
resident’s financial means, before any residents 
will be required to move. If such comparable 
replacement housing is not available, the 
regulations allow the agency to provide a 
replacement housing payment in excess of the 
statutory maximum as part of the Last Resort 
Housing process. 

 
The 5th Amendment of the U.S. Constitution 
provides that private property may not be taken 
for a public use without payment of “just 
compensation.” Additionally, the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property 
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 (Uniform Act) is a 
federally mandated program that applies to all 
acquisitions of real property or displacements of 
persons resulting from federal or federally 
assisted programs or projects, such as the 
implementation of these project alternatives. 
The Uniform Act was created to provide for and 
ensure that "just compensation" for 
government-acquired land is applied 
“uniformly.” CDOT requires Uniform Act 
compliance on any project for which it has 
oversight responsibility, regardless of the funding 
source. 

What will happen to 
property values? Will 
there be a cap on the 
values? 

This is outside the purview of CDOT. 
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